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STATEMENT OF FACTS 

Your affiant,  is a Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation (FBI), assigned to the San Antonio Field Office, Austin Resident Agency.  
Currently, I am tasked with investigating criminal activity in and around the Capitol grounds on 
January 6, 2021.  As a Special Agent, I am authorized by law or by a Government agency to 
engage in or supervise the prevention, detection, investigation, or prosecution of a violation of 
Federal criminal laws.  This statement of facts is intended to show merely that there is sufficient 
probable cause for the issuance of a criminal complaint and does not set forth all my knowledge 
about this matter. 

The U.S. Capitol is secured 24 hours a day by U.S. Capitol Police.  Restrictions around 
the U.S. Capitol include permanent and temporary security barriers and posts manned by U.S. 
Capitol Police.  Only authorized people with appropriate identification were allowed access 
inside the U.S. Capitol. On January 6, 2021, the exterior plaza of the U.S. Capitol was also 
closed to members of the public. 

On January 6, 2021, a joint session of the United States Congress convened at the United 
States Capitol, which is located at First Street, SE, in Washington, D.C.  During the joint session, 
elected members of the United States House of Representatives and the United States Senate 
were meeting in separate chambers of the United States Capitol to certify the vote count of the 
Electoral College of the 2020 Presidential Election, which had taken place on November 3, 2020. 
The joint session began at approximately 1:00 p.m.  Shortly thereafter, by approximately 1:30 
p.m., the House and Senate adjourned to separate chambers to resolve a particular objection.
Vice President Mike Pence was present and presiding, first in the joint session, and then in the
Senate chamber.

As the proceedings continued in both the House and the Senate, and with Vice President 
Mike Pence present and presiding over the Senate, a large crowd gathered outside the U.S. 
Capitol.  As noted above, temporary and permanent barricades were in place around the exterior 
of the U.S. Capitol building, and U.S. Capitol Police were present and attempting to keep the 
crowd away from the Capitol building and the proceedings underway inside.   

At such time, the certification proceedings were still underway and the exterior doors and 
windows of the U.S. Capitol were locked or otherwise secured.  Members of the U.S. Capitol 
Police attempted to maintain order and keep the crowd from entering the Capitol; however, 
around 2:00 p.m., individuals in the crowd forced entry into the U.S. Capitol, including by 
breaking windows and by assaulting members of the U.S. Capitol Police, as others in the crowd 
encouraged and assisted those acts. 

Shortly thereafter, at approximately 2:20 p.m. members of the United States House of 
Representatives and United States Senate, including the President of the Senate, Vice President 
Mike Pence, were instructed to—and did—evacuate the chambers.  Accordingly, the joint 
session of the United States Congress was effectively suspended until shortly after 8:00 p.m. 
Vice President Pence remained in the United States Capitol from the time he was evacuated from 
the Senate Chamber until the sessions resumed.  
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Identification of Geoffrey Shough 

During national news coverage of the aforementioned events, video footage which 
appeared to be captured on mobile devices of persons present on the scene depicted evidence of 
violations of local and federal law, including scores of individuals inside the U.S. Capitol 
Building without authority to be there. 

As part the investigation into unlawful conduct that occurred in and around the U.S. 
Capitol Building on January 6, 2021, the FBI obtained cell phone video footage that included 
video of a white male outside the U.S. Capitol building, walking back and forth on restricted 
U.S. Capitol grounds on January 6, 2021.  The individual was waving a Texas flag and wearing a 
jacket that was orange-brown in color, over what appears to be a body armor vest with a Texas 
flag patch, a ballistic-style helmet, goggles, hard-knuckle gloves, and a tan pouch attached at his 
hip.  During playback of the video, the individual is heard stating that he is from Austin, Texas.  
Still images from the video were placed on an FBI “Be on the Lookout” poster (BOLO) and 
released by the FBI in order to obtain public assistance in identifying unidentified subject #256.  
The images released by the FBI are shown below: 

       256A   256B 

Closed Caption Television (CCTV) footage from inside the U.S. Capitol Building on 
January 6, 2021 shows an individual unlawfully present in the Hall of Columns at approximately 
3:02 p.m., wearing the same clothes without the goggles, but with a gaiter pulled up over the 
lower part of his face (circled in red).  
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Based upon my examination of pictures of the flag that Shough purchased and the flag carried by 
the individual in pictures of unidentified subject #256 at the U.S. Capitol, the flag appears to be 
the same one, as shown below.   

Shough’s bank records also show that his debit card was used at a Whole Foods grocery 
store in Vienna, Virginia on January 5, 2021, and January 6, 2021; Jaleo restaurant in Washington, 
D.C. on January 5, 2021; Bikenetic bike shop in Falls Church, Virginia at 11:40 a.m. on January
6, 2021; an Exxon Mobil gas station in Vienna, Virginia on January 7, 2021; and a Residence Inn
in Vienna, Virginia on January 9, 2021 (in a transaction authorized on January 4, 2021).

Based on the foregoing, your affiant submits that there is probable cause to believe that 
Geoffrey Samuel Shough violated 18 U.S.C. § 231(a)(3), which makes it unlawful to commit or 
attempt to commit an act to obstruct, impede, or interfere with a law enforcement officer lawfully 
engaged in the lawful performance of his official duties incident to and during the commission of 
a civil disorder which in any way or degree obstructs, delays, or adversely affects commerce or 
the movement of any article or commodity in commerce or the conduct or performance of any 
federally protected function, operation, or action carried out, under the laws of the United States, 
by any department, agency, or instrumentality of the United States or by an officer or employee 
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